
 

   

1 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Landscape Institute Scotland, 15 Rutland Square, Edinburgh EH1 2BE 

 

 

 

LIS RESPONSE TO PROCUREMENT REFORM BILL CONSULTATION 
SUBMITTED TO THE SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT - 2012 

 
Consultation Q1. Do you agree with the proposed aim of the Bill?   

LIS Response 
Yes  

If you do not agree with the proposed aim, why not?  

We support the aims of the Bill in particular the streamlining of the process and making the procedure 

transparent, fair and particularly business friendly.  Most important of all the aims is to ensure there 

is proportionality and consistency in the complexity of the procedures, the tender forms and 

questionnaires and the experiences and policies requested of the tendering parties.  

  

PART I: PUBLIC PROCUREMENT PROCESSES ARE TRANSPARENT, 

STREAMLINED, PROPORTIONATE, STANDARDISED AND BUSINESS-FRIENDLY  
  

Consultation Q2. Should we place upon public sector bodies a general duty to conduct 

procurement in an effective, transparent and proportionate manner?   

LIS Response 
Yes  

To support this general duty and other requirements being proposed for public bodies, would it be 

appropriate for public bodies to be required to publish annual strategic procurement plans?   

No  

Will the content of these plans be consistent among all public bodies?  We would advocate that this 

is so.  

  

Consultation Q3. Should public sector bodies be required to use a specified standard pre-
qualification system?   
LIS Response 
Yes  
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Consultation Q4. Should the Bill be used to require public bodies to observe limits on 

minimum standards?   

LIS Response 
Yes 

As long as this is proportionate and appropriate to the project  

Should the annual turnover requirement be limited to no more than three times the annual contract 

value?   

No  

  

Consultation Q5. Should the Bill require public bodies to provide de-brief information to 

suppliers which bid for public contracts in Scotland in situations not covered by the 2012 
regulations?   

LIS Response 
Yes 

In what circumstances should public bodies be required to provide de-brief information – to all 

suppliers which bid or only to suppliers which submit a written request for such information?  

The supplier should submit a written request for de-brief information.  It should be clear to whom this 

is to be addressed and what the procedure is for requesting feedback, including what one may expect 

in terms of the detail of the feedback and on what aspects of the submission feedback information is 

provided.  

Should any requirement apply only to contracts of a certain value, for example contracts above 

£50k?   

No  

A lower threshold is required as a large proportion of Landscape Architect commissions are less than 

£50k.  

What de-brief information should public bodies provide to suppliers?  Should suppliers be given an 

option to receive information in writing or face to face?  

Scores and justifications for the scores, and scores in relation to other tenderers to highlight 

failings/areas of increased input for the next tender.  Advice on areas of low score which can be 

improved on.  Record on the qualification of those responsible for the scoring.  

Information should be provided in writing.  
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What timescales should apply?  

2 weeks, 10 working days to request the de-brief information  

2 weeks, 10 working days to provide the de-brief information  

A further 5 working days to allow clarification responses and further information  

Should exemptions apply?   

Yes  

There may be cases where this is necessary, as outlined in the consultation brief.  

If yes, what exemptions should apply?  

As noted in the consultation brief, where the disclosure of such information: would impede law 

enforcement; would otherwise be contrary to the public interest; would prejudice the legitimate 

commercial interests of any economic operator; or might prejudice fair competition between 

economic operators‟  

What are the potential costs/benefits?  

• Efficiencies in time spent.    

• It offers an opportunity to provide a more commercial edge on future tenders.  

• Avoids wasted time in future bids  

• Allows tenderers to focus on particular aspects Honest and transparent feedback will avert 

potential challenges  

• Tenderers will soon generate an understanding for which tenders they are truly 

qualified/experienced to offer services, reducing the number of bidders and time spent 

assessing bids.  

Should there be separate limits for construction?   

No  

  

Consultation Q6. Should the Bill prohibit charges being levied for the issue of tender 

documents to tenderers?  

LIS Response 
Yes 
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Consultation Q7. How could any new arrangements outlined in Part I be fully enforced?  
LIS Response 
Penalties for non-compliance, such as withheld funding, or fines. Monitoring through audits, random 

checks and thorough appraisal with the tenderers and the client.  

 

Consultation Q8. Please use this space to give reasons for your responses or if you have any 

further comments on the proposals in Part I. Please also use this space to give your thoughts 
on any definitions or potential impacts you would like us to consider in relation to this part 
of the Bill.  

LIS Response 
• Should be brief.  

• A degree of standardisation is welcome though care is to be taken that this does not become 

disproportionate and irrelevant for SMEs.   

• Clear feedback on a standard document would be valuable.  

• Procurement workshops to be made more available, in order to understand the value of the 

questions asked, why they have relevance to the project and to mitigate apprehension of 

many SMEs when approaching the procurement process.  

• Clarity in the title of the notice is important not to mislead and waste time of interested 

parties. Assistance to be offered to SMEs and new businesses to ensure that the correct 

criteria and areas of expertise are identified in the Public Contracts Scotland portal.  This will 

avoid unnecessary alerts and the potential to overlook relevant notices.  

  

PART II: Making it easier for business, particularly newer businesses, SMEs and 

Third Sector organisations, to access public contract opportunities and sub-

contracting requirements  
  

Q9. Should the Bill include a general duty on public bodies to consider, for each and every 
requirement, how the specification of requirements may impact on the ability of newer 

businesses, SMEs and Third Sector organisations to compete? 
LIS Response   
Yes 
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Consultation Q10. How, in conducting the procurement process, might public bodies act to 

facilitate access by newer businesses, SMEs and Third Sector organisations?  

LIS Response 
Training sessions.  

Ability to identify experience from previous practice as individual experience, and for this to be 

recognised equally as recent experience of the current practice. Equally, to ensure that larger 

practices/businesses do not use examples of experience which have not been carried out by the 

proposed project team members.  

The method of assessment of project experience should be well set out in the tender documentation 

– is it clear that it is about relevance of the experience to the specific project, the length of time 

practicing is relevant, but is often used as an automatic scoring criterion, rather than scoring the 

quality and relevance of the experience the individual may have.  The latter is likely to offer the project 

better outcomes and a more efficient running of the job.  

Flexibility on experience   

Flexibility on timescales of completed projects Flexibility resourcing requirements and partnering  

  

Consultation Q11. What in your view are the potential costs/benefits associated with such 
a duty? 

LIS Response 
Encouraging new startup companies.  Provides real opportunities for small, Scottish scale 

organisations.   

  

Consultation Q12. How could such a duty be enforced?  

LIS Response 
Penalties for non-compliance, such as withheld funding, or fines.  

Monitoring through audits, random checks and a thorough appraisal with the tenderers and the client.  

  

Consultation Q13. Do you agree that public sector bodies should be required to use a single 
specified online portal to advertise and award all contracts?   
LIS Response  

Yes  
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What level do you think the threshold should be set for: 

• goods and services contracts    

• works contracts 

Public Contracts Scotland works well – but EU thresholds should be observed.  Anything below EU 

thresholds could be dealt with on a more local based procurement portal ensuring that local firms are 

not excluded.   

  

Consultation Q14. Should the Bill place a duty on public bodies to publish contract 
documentation? 

LIS Response 
Yes  

  

Consultation Q15. What do you see as the advantages/disadvantages to requiring that 

public bodies publish contract documentation?  
LIS Response 
Time consuming.  It is not clear how relevant or useful publishing this information would be for future 

tenders  

  

Q16. What are the resource implications for buyers/suppliers if commercially sensitive 
information had to be removed from every contract prior to publication?  
LIS Response  
Significant implications on resource required to remove the information, from all parties including the 

successful organisation. Who would decide what is sensitive? Advice would have to be sought from 

law firms, this could be a debilitating expense for SMEs and new businesses.  

  

  

Consultation Q17. Could a requirement to publish contract documentation1 inhibit 

competition by deterring suppliers from bidding for public contracts, and subsequently 
have a detrimental effect on the value for money achieved on behalf of taxpayers?   
LIS Response 
No 

Consultation Q18. Would the publication of contract registers by public bodies be a better 

alternative to publishing full contract documentation?   

LIS Response 
Yes 

  

Consultation Q19. Would publication of contract documentation lead to greater 

transparency in the procurement process?   
LIS Response 
No 
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Consultation Q20. Would publication of contract documentation improve value for money 

by ensuring that public bodies took greater care to ensure that contracts are of a high 

standard?   

LIS Response 
No 

 

Consultation Q21. Should all “major contracts” be defined as one which is a public contract 

as defined by the EU procurement Directives and has a total estimated value over the 
contract duration that matches or exceeds the threshold applicable to public works 

contracts as defined by the EU public procurement Directive (currently £4.3m)?   

LIS Response 
Yes  

Consultation Q22. Should the Bill place a duty on those in receipt of major contracts to 

advertise sub-contract opportunities on a single specified online portal?   
LIS Response 
No 

There is a risk that main contractors will increase prices/contract value to accommodate the increased 

risk they will take on board for not being able to use their own supply chains. Lowest cost does not 

always provide best quality to the detriment of the project. This would be too onerous and time 

consuming.  

 

Consultation Q23. Are there other ways in which the Bill could achieve the desired policy 
objective (making it easier for SMEs and Third Sector organisations to access and compete 

effectively for contracts)?  
LIS Response 
Ensure that there is clarity and method in the assessment and that this is noted in the tender 

documentation.  

Place more responsibility with the assessor to apply common-sense. Ensure appropriately qualified 

assessors in the relevant discipline/sector.  

  

Consultation Q24. How could any new arrangements outlined in Part II be fully enforced?  
LIS Response 
Penalties for non-compliance, such as withheld funding, or fines. Monitoring through audits, random 

checks and thorough appraisal with the tenderers and the client.  

  

Consultation Q25. Please use this space to give reasons for your responses or if you have 
any further comments on the proposals in Part II. Please also use this space to give your 

thoughts on any definitions or potential impacts you would like us to consider in relation to 
this part of the Bill.  
LIS Response  

A proportionate and appropriate level of insurances should be requested.  Recent requests for level 

of Professional Indemnity Insurance have been unreasonable and unrealistic.  
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There should be parity among all public bodies, the Universities and NHS should for example use the 

single online portal, many currently do not.  

The culture for lowest price setting the highest score is not sustainable, it is driving fees down too low 

with many tenderers bidding at much reduced levels to simply sustain resource, and this is favouring 

larger companies.  Is there a case for mean fee setting the highest score? This is a method used in the 

Netherlands and Germany, and reduces the risk of low balling.  

Does the EU Directive dictate the scope and extent of the appointment or is this determined by the 

level of the fee and keeping below a certain threshold? There are often notices for picking up a 

consultant’s work at advanced stages in the project, for example Stage F/G, where there is an inherent 

bias towards the incumbent consultant and time is wasted by other tenderers.  If it were the case that 

another consultant were to be appointed at a later stage, this must be to the detriment of the project 

in terms of relationships with the client and community and for the delivery of the project. It must be 

made standard to offer full project appointments.  

The inclusion of an approximate value in the notices is resulting in much lower and unsustainable 

tenders. This practice should be removed.  

It would be beneficial if experienced consultants in the relevant field advise on the content of the 

tender, principles of the assessment and to be involved in the assessment of the returned tenders.  

  

PART III: SMARTER USE OF PUBLIC PROCUREMENT TO ENCOURAGE 

INNOVATION AND GROWTH  
  

Consultation Q26. How could the Bill help businesses develop and commercialise new or 

novel goods, services and works for internal and international markets?  
LIS Response 
Innovation questions in the tender questionnaire, providing an appropriate weighting to the response.  

Alternatively provide a bonus score for innovative ideas demonstrated in the tenders.  

  

Consultation Q27. Do you support our proposals to stimulate new businesses opportunities 
and inward investment in facilities to provide new, sustainable products and services for 
the public sector? 

LIS Response 
Yes  

Consultation Q28. Should the Procurement Reform Bill make it a requirement that 

purchasers must permit the submission of variant bids?  
LIS Response  
Yes  

It is very dangerous to compare variant bids to other compliant bids, as clearly the criteria differ and 

the financial offer is not comparable. If innovation is a requirement then it should clearly be part of 

the process  

  

Consultation Q29. How could any new arrangements outlined in Part III be fully enforced? 

LIS Response 
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In line with previous response, Q7  

Consultation Q30. Please use this space to give reasons for your responses or if you have 

any further comments on the proposals in Part III.  Please also use this space to give your 
thoughts on any definitions or potential impacts you would like us to consider in relation to 

this part of the Bill. 
LIS Response 
Stimulating new businesses, methodologies and innovative thinking is all good but briefs require 

parameters. Inviting variant bids introduces flexibility but potential difficulties in comparative 

assessment. The brief is defined in the tender to which the tender returns respond.  Innovation should 

be encouraged and this is better placed as a direct question in the tender inviting responses, but not 

in such a way as to create variation and incomparable bids.   

Flexibility rather than bureaucratic standardisation will nurture economic growth in Scotland.  

  

PART IV: TAKING ACCOUNT OF SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
SUSTAINABILITY ISSUES THROUGH PUBLIC PROCUREMENT  
 

Consultation Q31. Should those awarding major contracts2 be required to consider 

including community benefits clauses?   

LIS Response 
Yes  

Should those awarding major contracts be required to publish details of the benefits those clauses 

are intended to deliver and the outcomes or a statement explaining why the contract is not 

considered suitable for the inclusion of community benefit clauses?   

Yes  

Should those awarding major contracts be required to consult communities regarding Community 

Benefits they would wish to see delivered?   

Yes 

Should those awarding major contracts be required to consider extending community benefit 

clauses to sub-contractors?   

Yes 
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Consultation Q32. Should those in receipt of major contracts be required to publish training 

and apprenticeship plans for those contracts?   

LIS Response 
Yes  

  

Consultation Q33. Should we use the Procurement Reform Bill to promote greater use of 
supported businesses by the public sector?   

LIS Response  
Yes  

How can we ensure that public bodies consider use of supported businesses as part of their 
approach to procurement?  
A proportionate response required in line with the scale and specific requirements of the project.  

It should be clear in the Bill that supported businesses will be a consideration and that reasons for not 

considering should be documented and are to be audited.  

Should we make it a statutory requirement that public bodies have at least one current contract 

with a supported business?   

No  

  

Consultation Q34. Should we use the Bill to place a legal requirement that public bodies 
nominate a “Champion” for supported business to act as a focal point for enquiries and 

liaison? 
LIS Response   
No  

  

Consultation Q35. Should public sector bodies be placed under a general duty which 

requires them to demonstrate the extent to which what is being procured will promote or 

improve the economic, social, health and environmental well-being of the relevant area?   

LIS Response 
No  
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In conducting the process of procurement, should public sector bodies act with a view to securing 

that improvement?   

No  

  

Consultation Q36. How could any new arrangements outlined in Part IV be fully enforced?  
LIS Response  
The statistical parameters enforced, may result in a non-commercial environment. With great care.  

Simple demands for say x% local employment have resulted in cynical contractors laying off non-local 

staff in favour of the local quota.   

Good guidance and clear parameters required on this one  

 

Consultation Q37. Please use this space to give reasons for your responses or if you have 
any further comments on the proposals in Part IV.  Please also use this space to give your 

thoughts on any definitions or potential impacts you would like us to consider in relation to 
this part of the Bill.  

LIS Response  
NOTE: in point 126, it is not only buildings which can be influenced by procurement, do not exclude 

other components of development. The external environment offers an opportunity to improve the 

sustainable performance of developments.  

Procurement should never be confused with the provision of a social service. Local engagement, 

supported businesses are all good, but quality delivery is the key – not a feel-good narrative.  

%age benefits from large contracts are a good thing (i.e. % for art or local heritage) but these should 

be achieved as benefits from the competitive tendering process, not as costly add-ons increasing the 

cost to the public purse and delivering these gains in a less efficient manner than existing mechanisms.  

Procurement is a balance about ensuring best value in quality and cost and that should follow through 

from process to delivery. In terms of construction other elements are good such as local engagement, 

supported businesses, percentage benefits that assist local communities, but this already forms part 

of the planning process    

If we burden public organisations with additional „social‟ requirements as part of procurement the 

process will become more cumbersome, less efficient and more costly.  
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PART V: DEALING WITH INAPPROPRIATE CONDUCT AND POOR PERFORMING 

SUPPLIERS  
  

Consultation Q38. Should the Bill include measures to ensure that the public sector deals 

appropriately with poor performance and poor standards of business ethics on the part of 
contractors?   

LIS Response 
Yes 

Consultation Q39. Should contractors that fail to adhere to appropriate standards of 
conduct, performance and business ethics be excluded from competing for public 
contracts?   
LIS Response 
Yes 

What should that form of exclusion be?  

Period of exclusion is dependent on severity of conduct.  

Ability to prove worthy and fit for future opportunities would need to be set out as part of the 

penalising process.  There then should perhaps be a three strikes and you are out policy.  

  

Consultation Q40. How could any new arrangements outlined in Part V be fully enforced?  
LIS Response 
With an appropriate and proportionate level of auditing and accountability.  Current procedures are 

very thorough and appropriate.  

  

Consultation Q41. Please use this space to give reasons for your responses or if you have 
any further comments on the proposals contained in Part V.  Please also use this space to 

give your thoughts on any definitions or potential impacts you would like us to consider in 

relation to this part of the Bill.  
LIS Response 
Performance data is contract specific. Care should be taken not to unnecessarily tarnish/blight/black 

mark an organisation that has good reason for not fulfilling the contract, and have already made 

internal arrangements to reorganise, adjust and resource to rectify the problem.  

Careful monitoring is required and as stated in response Q40 these monitoring targets could be set 

out as part of the negotiated penalty.  

  

PART VI: APPLICATION AND COMPLIANCE  
  

Consultation Q42. Should the Bill adopt the same approach to defining public contracts as 
in the EU Directive and implementing Scottish Regulations?   
LIS Response  
Yes  

What should our approach be to local exemptions?  
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Local exemptions should be permitted and taken advantage of, in order to encourage local new 

businesses and SMEs, and to ensure maximum benefit to local companies and economy. Provenance 

should be priority if permitted within the constraints of EU governance, support of local economy to 

the benefit of local communities.  

 

Consultation Q43. Should we include specific provisions which explicitly exclude from 
coverage, contracts between public bodies which are non-commercial? (e.g. those that are 

in pursuit of shared service initiatives.)   
LIS Response  
Yes  

 

Consultation Q44. Should all of the proposals discussed in this consultation paper apply to 
the procurement of health and social services?   

LIS Response 
No 

 

Consultation Q45. Should the Bill apply to utility activities conducted by Private Sector 

bodies?  

LIS Response  
Yes 

 

Consultation Q46. Should the Procurement Reform Bill apply in full or in part to contracts 

awarded by public bodies in furtherance of utility activities as defined in Directive 
2004/17/EC, given effect in Scotland by the Utilities Contracts (Scotland) Regulations 2012?  
LIS Response 

Yes  

 

Consultation Q47. How could any new arrangements be fully enforced?  
LIS Response 
Through existing legislation and auditing mechanisms  

  

Consultation Q48. What sanctions might be appropriate for failure to comply?  
LIS Response  
Public exposure of poor practice.  Identify the extent of the wasted public money. Should be subject 

to a full independent audit of practice and procedure, and set out methods of rectification over key 

timescales.  

  

Consultation Q49. Should the Single Point of Enquiry have a role in relation to enforcement 
of the provisions of the Bill?   

LIS Response 
Yes 

Should it do so on the basis of statutory powers?    
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No 

  

Consultation Q50. Please use this space to give reasons for your responses or if you have 
any further comments on the proposals in Part VI. Please also use this space to give your 
thoughts on any definitions or potential impacts you would like us to consider in relation to 
this part of the Bill.  
LIS Response 
The EU thresholds may be generally fair and proportionate for whole contract costs but not for 

supplier fees (which tend to be construed as whole team fees and are therefore very low). The Scottish 

Government’s current endeavour to raise these thresholds is excellent. Non-commercial inter public 

body agreements should be drawn up to maximise public benefit but not through a scheme (i.e. public 

procurement) which is designed to deliver best value in public/private contracting arrangements.  

Utilities should not be exempt, albeit their relatively limited number makes competition more 

problematic – perhaps negotiated solutions more appropriate here.  

  

Living Wage through procurement  
  

Consultation Q51. Should procurement activity be used to encourage contractors to pay the 
living wage to their employees engaged in the delivery of public sector contracts?   

LIS Response 
No  

To what extent, in what form and at what stage should contractors be encouraged through 

procurement processes to pay a living wage?  

Other mechanisms are in place to deal with this.  (i.e. minimum wage legislation) Do we need to add 

to existing legislation - it will merely increase the cost Unfortunately this would not deliver. It would 

simply add further burdens to an already over-egged procurement system. Other mechanisms (i.e. 

minimum wage legislation) should deliver this! We appreciate that this is not a devolved power but 

using procurement as a way round this would not be effective. Much better to lobby loudly for more 

powers in this area.  


